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[bookmark: _Toc204091219]
Introduction
This guide serves as a resource for Local Workforce Solutions Boards (Boards) to address complaints and appeals related to various programs and services provided by and through the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC). This guide also seeks to clarify complaint procedures for the ES and Employment-Related Law Complaint System, including oversight of Migrant and Seasonal Farmworker (MSFW) populations in Texas, for Workforce Solutions Office staff members, including Wagner-Peyser Employment Service (ES) staff members.
[bookmark: _Toc204091220]Overview of Texas Workforce Commission Complaint Procedures
TWC’s complaint procedures ensure consistent process application and promotes a fair and efficient resolution for all individuals. Through Texas Workforce Solutions, TWC and its partners address various types of complaints, including those related to:
· Workforce Program Services—Complaints and determination appeals regarding the delivery of services under TWC and Board-administered programs and services, including:
· subsidized child care;
· the Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) Employment and Training program (Choices);
· Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T);
· WIOA Title I programs; and
· WIOA-eligible training providers.
· Wagner-Peyser Complaint System, ES and Employment-Related Law—Complaints involving failure to comply with ES regulations, complaints against employers to which applicants were referred, and apparent violations of ES regulations by employers
· MSFW—Complaints regarding ES and employment-related law specific to MSFW populations and participants.
[bookmark: _Toc204091221]Confidentiality and Privacy Statement
TWC is committed to protecting the confidentiality of individuals who file complaints. Personal information provided in a complaint will be used only for the purpose of investigating and resolving the complaint. 
[bookmark: _Toc204091222]Retaliation Protection
TWC prohibits retaliation against individuals who file complaints. This means that individuals must not experience any adverse action (such as a denial of services or a termination of employment) because of filing a complaint. 
[bookmark: _Toc204091223]Complaints Policy
[bookmark: _WIOA_Nondiscrimination_and]Boards must ensure that they develop and maintain local complaint policies that fully comply with the requirements and procedures included in this guidance. Local complaint policies must identify requirements for the training of Workforce Solutions Office staff on applicable local complaint procedures.
[bookmark: _Toc193350743][bookmark: _Toc204091224]Requirement to Provide Notice 
Boards and ES Supervisory staff must ensure that the Equal Opportunity Notice detailed in Title 29, Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) §38.35 is prominently displayed in available and conspicuous locations in Workforce Solutions Offices and on Board websites, provided to staff members, and included in employee and participant handbooks, as applicable
ES Supervisory staff Boards must ensure information about the Wagner-Peyser Complaint System is made available to the public, including (but not limited to) the prominent display of the ES and Employment-Related Law Complaint System Poster in each Workforce Solutions Office. A sample of the Wagner-Peyser (ES) Complaint System Poster is included in Appendix C of this guide.
Additionally, Boards and ES Supervisory staff must ensure that Workforce Solutions Office staff provide each program applicant or participant with the Orientation to Discrimination Complaint Procedures (OTDC), in English or Spanish, as appropriate. Staff members must store a signed OTDC in each participant's case file. The OTDC must be maintained in any applicable paper or electronic files, as practicable, including WorkInTexas.com.
[bookmark: _Toc193350744][bookmark: _Toc204091225]Identification of Complaints
Boards and ES Supervisory staff must ensure that Workforce Solutions Office staff identify the complaint type and follow the appropriate complaint procedure based on the information provided by a complainant.
[bookmark: _Toc204091226][bookmark: _Hlk192836602]Guidance Rescinded by the Complaints Guide
This guide incorporates and rescinds the following TWC guidance:
· WD Letter 14-24, issued September 16, 2024, and titled “Training Provider Complaint Procedures”
· WD Letter 03-24, issued April 16, 2024, and titled “Employment Service Complaint Determination Appeals”


[bookmark: _Toc204091227]Workforce Program Complaints and Determination Appeals
[bookmark: _Toc204091228]Types of Program Complaints and Determination Appeals
Regulations at Title 40, Texas Administrative Code (TAC), Part 20, Chapter 823 set out the procedures to be followed by Boards and TWC regarding complaints and determination appeals related to TWC and Board-administered programs. 
Applicable programs are limited to the following:
Subsidized child care
Choices
SNAP E&T
WIOA Title I (Adult, Dislocated Worker, and Youth programs) 
WIOA eligible training providers (ETPs)
Regulations at 40 TAC §823.1(c) clarify those complaints and determination appeals not managed under the program complaints process. The exceptions to these procedures include (but are not limited to):
· ES and employment-related law complaints, including apparent violations
· Alleged violations of nondiscrimination and EO requirements, including those made by participants in the above programs
Denial of benefits administered through Texas’ Health and Human Services Commission for recipients of TANF and SNAP E&T services
· Criminal violations
· Contract disputes, including between Boards and Board contractors
[bookmark: _Toc204091229]Program Complaints
Program complaints allege a violation of law, regulation, or rule relating to any applicable workforce program or service. Purely programmatic complaints do not include a prohibited basis for discrimination and are processed according to the regulations that apply to the relevant program. Pursuant to 29 CFR, Part 38, the TWC EO Officer does not have jurisdiction over purely programmatic complaints.
[bookmark: _Hlk193291169]Pursuant to 40 TAC §823.10(d), Boards must provide information about complaint procedures to individuals, ETPs, and subrecipients. Additionally, Boards must provide information about complaint procedures to any individual upon request, to workforce program applicants and participants, and by posting such procedures in a prominent area in each Workforce Solutions Office.
Program complaints must be filed within 180 calendar days of the alleged violation.

[bookmark: _Toc204091230]Program Determination Appeals
Individuals may file an appeal of a determination (made by a Board or designee or TWC) affecting the type and level of services or benefits to be provided. Program determinations may be appealed by any individual directly affected by the determination.
Pursuant to 40 TAC §823.11, Boards must provide notice of a determination and information about determination appeal procedures to any individual directly affected. Training providers may appeal a determination related to denial or termination of eligibility as an ETP or provider of other WIOA training services. Training providers may not appeal a determination relating to eligibility for training services of a workforce program participant.
Program determination appeals must be filed within 14 calendar days of the mailing date of the determination.
[bookmark: _Toc204091231]Filing a Program Complaint
The following individuals have the right to file program complaints:
· Workforce Solutions Office customers
· Previously employed individuals who believe they were displaced by a Workforce Solutions Office customer participating in work-based programs
· Training providers, including WIOA ETPs
· Other interested individuals affected by the Texas Workforce system, including subrecipients
In accordance with 40 TAC, Chapter 823, complaints must be filed within 180 calendar days of the alleged violations and can be filed: 
· in person at a Workforce Solutions Office; 
· by facsimile;
· online; or
by mail. 
Complainants must provide their name, contact information, and a brief description of the complaint in writing.
If a complainant chooses to take part in the Board Informal Resolution Procedure to resolve a program complaint, they must notify the Board in accordance with the Board’s written program complaint procedure. 
If the Board Informal Resolution Procedure results in final agreement between parties to address a program complaint, the Board will issue a Notice of Final Agreement within 60 calendar days of the filing date of the complaint, and no further action will be taken.
If a complainant does not choose to take part in the Board Informal Resolution Procedure, or it does not lead to final agreement, the Board will initiate a formal review, including hearings with the parties to the complaint.
The Board will send the parties a written decision setting forth the results of the hearing within 60 calendar days of the filing of the complaint.
[bookmark: _Toc204091232]Filing a Program Determination Appeal
The following individuals have the right to appeal program determinations:
· Workforce Solutions Office customers
· Training providers, including WIOA ETPs
· Other interested individuals affected by the Texas workforce system, including subrecipients
In accordance with 40 TAC, Chapter 823, determination appeals must be filed within 14 calendar days of the mailing date of the determination notice and can be filed in writing: 
· in person at a Workforce Solutions Office; 
· by facsimile;
· online; or
· by mail. 
Affected individuals must provide their name, contact information, and a brief description of the reason for determination appeal in writing.
[bookmark: _Hlk200534721]If an affected individual chooses to take part in the Board Informal Resolution Procedure to resolve a determination appeal, they must notify the Board in accordance with the Board’s written procedure. 
If the Board Informal Resolution Procedure results in final agreement between parties to address a program determination appeal, the Board will issue a Notice of Final Agreement within 60 calendar days of the filing date of the determination appeal, and no further action will be taken.
If an affected individual does not choose to take part in the Board Informal Resolution Procedure, or it does not lead to final agreement, the Board will initiate a formal review, including hearings with the parties to the determination appeal.
The Board will send the parties a written decision setting forth the results of the hearing within 60 calendar days of the filing date of the determination appeal.
[bookmark: _Toc204091233]Right to Appeal Decisions
Within 14 calendar days of the mailing date of a Board decision, affected parties have the right to file a written appeal with the TWC Special Program Appeals department.
If a timely appeal is not filed, the Board decision will be considered final.
If no Board decision is mailed within the 60 calendar days of initial filing of the complaint or determination appeal, a party may file an appeal in writing with the TWC Special Program Appeals department. The appeal must be filed no later than 90 days after the filing date of the original complaint or appeal.
[bookmark: _Hlk191590861]Complainants and affected parties have a right to appeal to DOL when decisions are not issued within the time prescribed or when an adverse final decision is issued by the Board or TWC. An appeal must be submitted in writing to the Secretary and the U.S. Department of Labor Employment and Training Administration (DOLETA) Regional Office Administrator. Copies must also be provided to opposing parties in the complaint or appeal. 
Appeals to DOL regarding Board decisions must be filed within 120 calendar days of the initial filing or timely appeal to TWC. Appeals to DOL regarding TWC decisions must be filed within 60 calendar days of receipt of TWC’s decision.
All TWC decisions regarding training provider complaints or determination appeals are considered final and complete. Training providers do not have a right to appeal to DOL. 
[bookmark: _Toc204091234]Board Responsibilities
Boards must develop and approve written policies that ensure local program complaint and determination appeals procedures comply with requirements included in 40 TAC, Chapter 823 and any subsequent formal requirements provided to Boards by TWC in accordance with existing state and federal laws and regulations, as applicable.
Boards and Board subrecipients must make program complaint and determination appeals policies available upon request to TWC, program applicants and participants, and other interested individuals. This information must include any applicable time frames relating to program complaints and determination appeals.
Boards must ensure that individuals are notified that program complaints or determination appeals must be submitted in writing and must include any relevant information that forms the basis of the complaint or determination appeal.
Boards must designate an individual to be responsible for investigating, documenting, monitoring, and following up on program complaints and determination appeals. That individual may be the Board Equal Opportunity (EO) Officer. 
Boards’ designated complaint officers must maintain a log of program complaints and determination appeals, and all complaint-related materials in a secure file for a period of three years after final resolution. They must comply with all requirements including those found in local complaints and appeals policies, including 40 TAC, Chapter 823 and 20 CFR §683.630(b) regarding contracted training providers and WIOA ETPs.
Boards must inform individuals of the:
right to file a program complaint;
right to appeal a determination;
opportunity for informal resolution and a Board review;
time frame in which to either reach informal resolution or to issue a Board decision; and
right to file an appeal to TWC, including providing information on where to file the appeal.
Boards must accept written complaints that are filed in writing within 180 calendar days of the alleged violation of law, regulation, or rule relating to any applicable workforce program or service. Complaints must include at a minimum:
the complainant’s name and current mailing address; and
a brief statement, including facts pertinent to the complaint.
Boards must ensure that Board or Workforce Solutions Office staff members provide a written notice by mail of a determination affecting the type and level of program services or benefits, including denial or termination of eligibility, to an individual directly affected under any program identified in 40 TAC §823.1(b), including a training provider. The notice of determination must include:
a description of action taken by the Board, including the date;
the mailing date of notice;
an explanation of the right of the individual (which may be a training provider) to a determination appeal;
the procedure to request informal resolution or request a hearing (including time frames);
the right to representation; and
the mailing address and fax number to send an informal resolution request or appeal.
Boards must accept written determination appeals relating to program eligibility determinations (including those affecting training providers) that are filed within 14 calendar days of the mailing date of the determination notice. Determination appeals must include at a minimum:
the complainant’s name and current mailing address; and
a brief statement of the denial or termination of eligibility, including facts pertinent to the determination appeal.
Boards must ensure that any program complaints and determination appeals remanded from TWC to the Board for resolution are handled in a manner following established Board policies and time frames.
[bookmark: _Toc204091235]Board Informal Resolution Procedures 
Boards must offer complainants an opportunity for informal resolution of program complaints or determination appeals. Local Board Informal Resolution Procedures may include (but are not limited to):
meetings with case managers or supervisors;
case file reviews;
phone calls or conference calls;
in-person interviews; and
written explanations of laws and regulations.
Each Board must ensure that the process to request a Board Informal Resolution Procedure is included in the Board’s written program complaint policy and information on this procedure is provided to each party to a program complaint or determination appeal.
If the informal resolution procedure results in a final agreement between the parties, the Board must issue a Notice of Final Agreement within 60 calendar days of the filing date of the complaint or appeal. The Board may then consider the program complaint or determination appeal resolved.
[bookmark: _Toc204091236]Board Reviews
If informal resolution fails or does not result in a final agreement between the parties, the Board must conduct a formal review and issue a written decision no later than 60 calendar days of the original filing date of the complaint or determination appeal.
Boards must designate adjudicators to conduct Board hearings, document actions taken, and render decisions regarding program complaints and determination appeals. Adjudicators act under the authority of the Board, but Boards should ensure that adjudicators—whether Board staff or a third party—do not have any conflicts of interest, or appearance thereof, that would predispose the adjudicator toward the Board or a specific complainant.
The formal review process must include a hearing conducted by a Board adjudicator. The Board adjudicator will issue a written decision following the hearing that must be mailed within 60 calendar days of the original filing date of the complaint or determination appeal.
The Board’s written decision must contain clear directions for the complainant, or other parties to the complaint or determination appeal, informing them of their right to appeal the decision to TWC and the appeals process. The directions must clearly state that the party has 14 calendar days from the date the decision was mailed to file an appeal.
[bookmark: _Toc204091237]Texas Workforce Commission Responsibilities
Complaints filed with TWC must be submitted using one of the following methods:
· Mail
TWC Special Program Appeals
101 East 15th Street, Room 414
Austin, Texas 78778-0001
· Email: specialprogram.appeals@twc.texas.gov
· Fax: (512) 463-9318
Note: The appellant should keep the appeal fax confirmation.
TWC may redirect program complaints relating to Board actions to the appropriate Board for processing.
TWC will offer an informal resolution for state-level complaints before setting a hearing date. TWC will set a hearing date when:
an appeal of a Board decision or TWC eligibility determination is received from an appellant; or 
TWC’s informal resolution process does not result in a satisfactory resolution for the complainant in a state-level complaint, and the state-level complaint has not been remanded to the Board. 
TWC must issue notice of a hearing to affected parties at least 10 calendar days before the hearing date.
Following the conclusion of the hearing, the hearing officer must promptly issue a written decision on behalf of TWC. Decisions issued on state-level complaints and grievances, TWC eligibility determinations, or appeals of local-level complaints and grievances, will be issued within 60 calendar days of the filing of the complaint, grievance, or appeal, whichever comes later.
A party has 14 calendar days from the hearing officer’s decision mailing date to file a motion for rehearing (MR). To be granted, an MR must allege new evidence, explain why the evidence was not presented earlier, and explain how considering the new evidence would change the outcome of the case. If granted, a new hearing will take place and a separate decision issued based on all of the evidence presented, including the evidence at the rehearing. A hearing officer decision regarding a program complaint or determination appeal is final after 14 calendar days following the mailing date of the latest decision.  
Contracted training provider and WIOA ETP complaints and determination appeals regarding a Board or TWC decision are not appealable to DOL under the federal appeal process described in this guidance.
Complaints filed directly with TWC may be remanded to the appropriate Board to be processed in accordance with the Board’s policies for resolving complaints.
[bookmark: _Toc204091238]Federal Appeal Process
[bookmark: _Hlk195612642]An appeal must be submitted in writing to the Secretary and the DOLETA regional office administrator. Copies must also be provided to opposing parties in the complaint or appeal. 
DOL will investigate program complaint or determination appeals when any of the following circumstances apply:
· A decision on a complaint or determination appeal has not been reached within 60 calendar days of receipt of the grievance or complaint.
· A decision on a complaint or determination appeal has not been reached within 60 calendar days of receipt of the request for appeal of a Board grievance and either party appeals to DOL.
· A TWC decision on a complaint or determination appeal has been reached, and the party to which such decision is adverse appeals to the U.S. Secretary of Labor.
This federal appeals process applies solely to noncriminal complaints and determination appeals regarding WIOA Title I or other DOL-administered programs.


[bookmark: _Toc204091239]Wagner-Peyser Complaint System—Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaints
[bookmark: _Toc25594269][bookmark: _Toc48906794][bookmark: _Toc103841490][bookmark: _Toc103841622][bookmark: _Toc103843184][bookmark: _Toc104549313][bookmark: _Toc104549436][bookmark: _Toc189640760][bookmark: _Toc204091240]Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaint Procedures
Regulations at 20 CFR, Part 658, Subpart E sets out the procedures to be followed by the ES and Employment-Related Law Complaint System (Complaint System) required under the Wagner-Peyser Act. The Complaint System processes complaints about employers, employment services provided by Workforce Solutions Office staff (including ES merit staff), and complaints involving the failure to comply with the ES regulations.
The Complaint System:
addresses complaints involving failure to comply with ES regulations;
addresses complaints against an employer about the specific job to which the applicant was referred through the ES;
accepts, refers, and (under certain circumstances) tracks complaints involving employment-related law; and
addresses apparent violations (suspected or observed violations of employment-related laws or ES regulations by an employer).
Complaints related to the type and quality of services provided by a Workforce Solutions Office include those submitted to TWC regarding staff member actions or omissions under ES regulations.
Individuals may file complaints related to ES or employment-related law, including:
terms and conditions of a job order;
ES services provided at a Workforce Solutions Office;
employment practices;
working conditions;
wages; and
other issues such as human trafficking or sexual harassment.
[bookmark: _Hlk192086516]Appropriately trained Workforce Solutions Office staff members may accept Wagner-Peyser complaints and refer a complaint to a local Complaint System Representative if ES Merit staff members are not available when a complainant visits a Workforce Solutions Office to file an ES or employment-related law complaint.
[bookmark: _Hlk216362577]Boards must ensure that local complaint policies address the need to ensure Workforce Solutions Officenon-ES staff members are trained and available to accept Wagner-Peyser complaints, especially in all Workforce Solutions Offices in which access to a local Complaints System Representative or other ES Merit staff members may be limited. Local Complaint System Representatives must be assigned to each Workforce Solutions Office.
[bookmark: _Toc204091241]Complaints against Out-of-State Employers or American Job Centers
In instances where the employer is located out of state, the local Complaint System Representative must send the complaint to TWC’s Complaint System Coordinator, who will route the complaint to the appropriate official in the state in which the employer is located, with a copy of the complaint sent to the DOLETA Regional offices with jurisdiction over TWC and the sending and receiving state workforce agency.
In instances where the complaint is alleged against an out-of-state one-stop center, the local Complaint System Representative must send the complaint to TWC’s Complaint System Coordinator, who will route the complaint to the appropriate one-stop center in the state the complaint names, with a copy of the complaint to the DOLETA Regional offices with jurisdiction over TWC and the state named in the complaint.
[bookmark: _Toc189640761][bookmark: _Toc204091242]Filing Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaints
Complainants may file an ES or employment-related law complaint online, by mail, fax, or in person at a Workforce Solutions Office.
To be processed, a complaint or apparent violation must adhere to the following requirements:
Complaints must be in writing and be documented using Form ETA-8429.
Note: A written (letter or email) complaint that includes sufficient information to initiate an investigation and is signed by the complainant must also be accepted in place of Form ETA-8429.
Complaints must contain the following information:
· The complainant’s name and address (or another means of contacting the complainant)
· The respondent’s contact information (employer or state agency)
· A description of the complaint or apparent violation
· Whether the complainant is an MSFW
· The signature of the complainant or the complainant’s authorized representative
If an individual or their representative indicates interest in filing an ES or employment-related law complaint, appropriately trained Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members (or other appropriately trained Workforce Solutions Office staff members) receiving the complaint must:
offer to explain the Complaint System;
offer to take the complaint in writing using Form ETA-8429;
make every effort to obtain all necessary information to investigate the complaint;
request all the physical addresses, email addresses, telephone numbers, and any other helpful methods of contact during the investigation of the complaint; 
facilitate access to the nearest Complaint System Representative before the complainant leaves the office or area (if possible, including virtually) and explain the need to maintain contact during the investigation;
ensure the complainant signs and submits the complaint using Form ETA-8429; and
offer to assist the complainant in completing Part I of the form and submitting all necessary information and provide such assistance if the complainant desires such assistance.
[bookmark: _A-2032:_Employment_Service][bookmark: _Toc25594271][bookmark: _Toc48906796][bookmark: _Toc103841492][bookmark: _Toc103841624][bookmark: _Toc103843186][bookmark: _Toc104549315][bookmark: _Toc104549438][bookmark: _Toc189640763][bookmark: _Toc204091243]Complaints Regarding the Employment Service Regulations
TWC, including ES Supervisory staffBoards, and local Complaint System Representatives, must ensure that when an ES complaint is filed against an employer the Workforce Solutions Office serving the area where the employer is located processes the complaint. 
Additionally, ES Supervisory staffBoards and local Complaint System Representatives must ensure that when an ES complaint is filed against a Workforce Solutions Office, the complaint is processed by the Workforce Solutions Office where the alleged violation occurred. If a Workforce Solutions Office receives an ES complaint against another Workforce Solutions Office, and the alleged violation did not occur in the receiving office’s Workforce Development Area, the complaint must be referred to the appropriate ES Ssupervisory staff of that Workforce Solutions Office. Complaints submitted by MSFWs, or their representatives, must be processed in accordance with the MSFW Complaints section of this guidance. 
Complaints filed at the Workforce Solutions Office or TWC regarding failure to comply with ES regulations must be addressed as follows:
1. When an individual indicates their interest in filing an ES complaint, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must offer to:
· explain the Complaint System; and
· assist the complainant in filling out Part I of Form ETA-8429.
2. Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must accept a hard copy or electronic complaint from the complainant or their representative using Form ETA-8429, which describes the alleged violation and desired outcome, and complete Part II of Form ETA-8429.
3. Once the form is completed and signed, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must immediately send the form, along with all pertinent documentation, to the Complaint System Representative for processing.
4. If the complaint alleges discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws, the local Complaint System Representative must log the allegation on the Complaint Log and immediately refer such a complaint to the TWC EO Officer and notify the complainant of this referral.
5. The local Complaint System Representative must:
· log the complaint on the Complaint Log;
· investigate the complaint; and
· attempt to resolve the complaint immediately.
6. Once received, the local Complaint System Representative must attempt to resolve the complaint informally at the local level, unless:
· it alleges unlawful discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws;
· the complaint was submitted to TWC, and the TWC Complaint System Coordinator determines that immediate action or referral is necessary; or  
· informal resolution at the local level would be detrimental to the complainant.
7. If the complaint is not resolved within 15 business days, the Complaint System Representative must send the complaint to the TWC Complaint System Coordinator for resolution.  
8. The local Complaint System Representative must notify the complainant and the respondent in writing of the informal resolution to which all parties have arrived or referral of the complaint to TWC.
9. [bookmark: _Hlk194581841]Once received, the TWC Complaint System Coordinator must investigate immediately and make a determination within 30 business days of receipt.
10. All ES complaint determinations must be sent to the parties or their representatives by certified mail, and a copy of the TWC Determination Notice will be sent via email (when available).
If TWC determines that the employer violated ES regulations and the complaint is connected to a job or clearance order, TWC will initiate procedures for discontinuation of services immediately. TWC will notify both the complainant and the employer of this action. 
A complaint regarding ES regulations must be processed to resolution under the above procedures only if it is made within two years of the alleged occurrence.
[bookmark: _Toc189640764][bookmark: _Toc204091244]Complaints Regarding Employment-Related Laws
When a complaint is filed regarding an employment-related law, the Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff member receiving the complaint must determine if the complainant is an MSFW. Complaints submitted by MSFWs, or their representatives, must be processed in accordance with the MSFW Complaints section of this guidance.
Complaints submitted by non-MSFWs must be addressed as follows:
1. When an individual indicates their interest in filing an employment-related law complaint, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must offer to:
· explain the Complaint System; and
· assist the complainant in filling out Part I of Form ETA-8429.
2. Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must accept a hard copy or electronic complaint from the complainant or their representative using Form ETA-8429, which describes the alleged violation of the employment-related law and desired outcome, and complete Part II of Form ETA-8429.
3. Once the form is completed and signed, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must immediately send the form along with all pertinent documentation to the local Complaint System Representative for processing.
4. Once received, the local Complaint System Representative must record the complaint in the Complaint Log and immediately refer the complaint to the appropriate enforcement agency, another public agency, a legal aid organization, and/or a consumer advocate organization, as appropriate. Referrals must include the Form ETA-8429 and all related documentation and must be transmitted by the local Complaints System Representative using the method prescribed by the receiving entity. 
5. Complaints regarding employment-related laws may be referred as follows:
· Refer complaints alleging violation of employment-related laws (such as the Fair Labor Standards Act and wage and hour issues) to TWC’s or DOL’s Wage and Hour Division.
· Refer complaints alleging unsafe working conditions to DOL’s Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA).
· Refer complaints alleging discrimination or reprisal for a protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination law by an employer that did not have an internal job order in WorkInTexas.com to TWC’s EO Office.
· Refer complaints alleging employer behavior associated with human or labor trafficking to the appropriate law enforcement agency.
6. The local Complaint System Representative must notify the complainant in writing of the referral.
7. No follow-up is required once the complaint has been sent to the proper enforcement agency.

[bookmark: _MSFW_(Migrant_and]If an enforcement agency makes a final determination that the employer violated an employment-related law and the complaint is connected to a job or clearance order, TWC will initiate procedures for discontinuation of services immediately. TWC will notify both the complainant and the employer of this action.

[bookmark: _Toc204091245]Wagner-Peyser Complaint System—Migrant and Seasonal Farmworker Complaints
[bookmark: _Toc204091246]Types of Migrant and Seasonal Farmworker Complaints
MSFW protections in the Complaint System allow for a shorter period to conduct investigations leading to resolutions. If an MSFW or their representative wishes to submit an employment-related law complaint, the local Complaint System Representative at the Workforce Solutions Office nearest to the employer in question must attempt informal resolution within five business days of receipt of the complaint. The local Complaint System Representative must keep the MSFW informed of progress on the complaint no less than once each 30-day period until the complaint is resolved. The local Complaint System Representative must also offer to refer the MSFW to other ES services if they are interested.
MSFWs or their representatives may file complaints related to ES or employment-related law, including:
terms and conditions of a job order;
ES services provided at a Local Workforce Solutions Office;
employment practices;
working conditions;
wages;
housing;
transportation; and
other issues such as human trafficking or sexual harassment.
Appropriately trained Workforce Solutions Office staff members may accept Wagner-Peyser complaints and refer the complaint to the local Complaint System Representative if ES Merit staff members are not available when a complainant visits a Workforce Solutions Office to file an ES or employment-related law complaint.
Boards must ensure that local complaint policies address the need to ensure Workforce Solutions Officenon-ES staff members are trained and available to accept Wagner-Peyser complaints, especially in all Workforce Solutions Offices in which access to local Complaint System Representatives, or other ES Merit staff members may be limited.
[bookmark: _Discrimination_Complaints_filed][bookmark: _Toc204091247]Discrimination Complaints Filed by Migrant and Seasonal Farmworkers
Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of WIOA §188 and 29 CFR, Part 38 protections, or in violation of the Immigration and Nationality Act’s anti-discrimination provision, must be addressed as follows:
1. Workforce Solutions Office staff members accept a hard copy or electronic complaint from the MSFW or their representative using Form ETA-8429 that describes the alleged unlawful discrimination.
2. The complaint is referred to the local Complaint System Representative.
3. Once received, the local Complaint System Representative must record in the Complaint Log and immediately refer the complaint to the TWC EO Officer via email.
4. [bookmark: _Toc184979797]The local Complaint System Representative must notify the MSFW or their representative of the referral to the TWC EO Officer in writing via letter or email.
[bookmark: _Toc204091248]Filing a Complaint as a Migrant and Seasonal Farmworker
MSFWs or their representatives may file an ES or employment-related law complaint online, by mail, fax, or in-person at a Workforce Solutions Office. 
Workforce Solutions Office staff members receiving an MSFW complaint must:
· offer to explain Complaint System operations;
· offer to take the complaint in writing using Form ETA-8429;
· make every effort to obtain all necessary information to investigate the complaint;
· request all physical addresses, email addresses, telephone numbers, and any other relevant contact information needed to investigate the complaint; 
· request that the MSFW or their representative contact the nearest local Complaint System Representative before leaving the area (if possible) and explain the need to maintain contact during the investigation;
· ensure the MSFW or their representative submits the complaint using either Form ETA-8429 or a written (letter or email) complaint signed by the MSFW or their representative; and
· offer to assist the MSFW or their representative in filling out Part I of the complaint form and submitting all necessary information and assist if the MSFW complainant desires such help.

Local Complaint System Representatives will provide monthly updates to MSFWs or their representatives on the status of their complaints.
[bookmark: _Toc184979799][bookmark: _Toc204091249]Migrant and Seasonal Farm Worker Complaints Regarding Employment-Related Laws
Complaints filed at a Workforce Solutions Office or with TWC regarding an employment-related law must be addressed as follows:
1. When an MSFW or their representative indicates their interest in filing an employment-related law complaint, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must offer to:
· explain the Complaint System; and
· assist the complainant in filling out Part I of Form ETA-8429.
2. Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must accept a hard copy or electronic complaint from the complainant or their representative using Form ETA-8429 which describes the alleged violation of the employment-related law and desired outcome and complete Part II of Form ETA-8429.
3. Once the form is completed and signed, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must immediately send the form along with all pertinent documentation to the local Complaint System Representative for processing.
4. If the complaint alleges discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws, the local Complaint System Representative must log the allegation on the Complaint Log and immediately refer such a complaint to the TWC EO Officer and notify the complainant of this referral.
5. The local Complaint System Representative must:
· log the complaint on the Complaint Log;
· investigate the complaint; and
· attempt to resolve the complaint immediately.
6. Once received, the local Complaint System Representative must attempt to resolve the complaint informally at the local level, unless:
· it alleges unlawful discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws;
· the complaint was submitted to TWC, and the TWC Complaint System Coordinator determines that immediate action or referral is necessary; or  
· informal resolution at the local level would be detrimental to the MSFW.
7. If the complaint is not resolved between the parties within five business days, the local Complaint System Representative must forward the employment-related law complaint to the appropriate enforcement agency, another suitable public agency, legal aid organization, or consumer advocate organization for further assistance. Referrals must include the Form ETA-8429 and all related documentation and must be transmitted by the local Complaints System Representative using the method prescribed by the receiving entity.
If an enforcement agency makes a final determination that the employer violated an employment-related law and the complaint is connected to a job or clearance order, TWC will initiate procedures for discontinuation of services immediately. TWC will notify both the MSFW and the employer of this action.
[bookmark: _Toc184979801][bookmark: _Toc204091250]Migrant and Seasonal Farm Worker Complaints Regarding the Employment Service Regulations
When an ES complaint is filed against an employer or Workforce Solutions Office, the local Complaint System Representative must process the complaint.
Complaints filed at a Workforce Solutions Office or TWC regarding failure to comply with ES regulations must be addressed as follows:
1. When an MSFW or their representative indicates their interest in filing an ES complaint, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must offer to:
· explain the Wagner-Peyser Complaint System; and
· assist the complainant in filling out Part I of Form ETA-8429.
2. Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must accept a hard copy or electronic complaint from the complainant or their representative using Form ETA-8429 which describes the alleged violation of the employment-related law and desired outcome and complete Part II of Form ETA-8429.
3. If the complaint alleges discrimination or reprisal for a protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws, the local Complaint System Representative must immediately refer such complaint to the TWC EO Officer and notify the complainant of this referral.
4. Once the form is completed and signed, Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members must immediately send the form along with all pertinent documentation to the local Complaint System Representative for processing.
5. If the complaint alleges discrimination or reprisal for protected activity in violation of nondiscrimination laws, the local Complaint System Representative must log the allegation on the Complaint Log and immediately refer such a complaint to the TWC EO Officer and notify the complainant of this referral.
6. Once received, the local Complaint System Representative must:
· log the complaint on the Complaint Log;
· investigate the complaint; and
· attempt to resolve the complaint immediately.
7. [bookmark: _Hlk198218828]If the complaint is not resolved between the parties within five business days, the local Complaint System Representative must send the complaint to the TWC Complaint System Coordinator for resolution.  
8. The local Complaint System Representative must notify both the MSFW who filed the complaint (or their representative) and the respondent in writing of the informal resolution to which all parties have arrived or referral of the ES complaint to TWC.
9. Once received, the TWC Complaint System Coordinator must investigate the complaint immediately and make a determination within 20 business days of receipt.
10. All ES complaint determinations must be sent to the parties or their representatives by certified mail, and a copy of the TWC Determination Notice will be sent via email (when available). 
If TWC determines that the employer violated ES regulations and the complaint is connected to a job or clearance order, TWC will initiate procedures for discontinuation of services immediately. TWC will notify both the complainant and the employer of this action. 
A complaint regarding the ES regulations from an MSFW complainant or their representative must be received within two years of the alleged occurrence to be timely received and processed to resolution under the above procedures.
[bookmark: _Toc204091251][bookmark: _Toc184979802]Complaint Log
The statewide record of ES and employment-related law complaints and apparent violations is maintained by the State Administrator and by each ES Supervisory staff memberBoard. Boards must ensure that appropriate supervisors and lLocal Complaint System Representatives and ES Supervisory staff must ensure maintain the Complaint Log is maintained in accordance with TWC requirements, with all information regarding local complaints (including those received and resolved at the local level without referral to the TWC Complaint System Coordinator) and apparent violations. An electronic copy must be transmitted to the State Monitor Advocate at least once per calendar quarter as established under 20 CFR §658.410
At a minimum, the Complaint Log must include the following:
Date complaint filed or apparent violation identified
Complainant name
Respondent name
Complainant address (when available)
Whether the complaint is made by an MSFW or representative, or if the apparent violation affects an MSFW
Whether the complaint or apparent violation concerns an employment-related law or the ES regulations
Complaint description (to include notation of supplemental documentation provided by the complainant or their representative)
Actions taken and dates of actions, including updates provided and/or informal resolution
Status of complaint
Date of outcome
[bookmark: _Toc204091252]Informal Resolutions
Complaints System Representatives at Workforce Solutions Offices may facilitate, as appropriate, discussion between the parties to a complaint to reach an informal resolution. The local Complaints System Representative must act as an impartial facilitator and may not propose a solution or dictate terms of a settlement to the parties. If the parties reach an informal resolution to the complaint, the local Complaints System Representative must ensure that both parties affirm the terms of the agreement through written signature (including electronically) and document the informal resolution and record the outcome on the Complaint Log.
ES Supervisory staffBoards are responsible for ensuring that appropriate supervisors and local Complaint System Representatives maintaining an activity log that includes all actions and documents relating to local ES or employment-related law complaints received. At a minimum this log must include all relevant information on complaint referrals from MSFWs, a notation of the type of complaint, a copy of the original complaint form, a copy of any ES-related reports, any relevant correspondence, a list of actions taken, a record of pertinent telephone calls, and all correspondence relating to the complaint. This information must be documented and maintained in accordance with TWC’s approved Record Retention Schedule.
[bookmark: _Toc204091253]TWC Complaint Determination Notice
The determination notice provided by TWC Complaint System Coordinator to all parties to ES complaints, will be delivered by certified mail, and copies via email, as practicable.
The TWC Determination Notice will include: 
the results of the investigation; 
the conclusions reached on the allegations of the complaint; 
confirmation that TWC will initiate procedures for the discontinuation of services to the employer when there is a final determination indicating a violation of ES regulations by the employer;
an explanation of why the complaint was not resolved if a resolution was not reached; and 
a statement advising the complainant or employer of their right to appeal and informing them that requests for appeal hearings must be made within 20 business days after the certified date of receipt of the TWC Determination Notice.
If TWC receives a written request of a hearing, the appeal proceedings under 20 CFR §658.411(d)(5) will be followed. 
[bookmark: _Toc204091254]Apparent Violations
The Complaint System also addresses apparent violations. Regulations at 20 CFR §658.419 set out the procedures for documenting apparent violations. If Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members (including MSFW outreach staff) have reason to believe there is, or otherwise receive information regarding, a suspected violation of employment-related laws or ES regulations by an employer, they must document the suspected violation as an apparent violation using Form ETA-8429. The violation must then be referred to the appropriate ES Ssupervisory staff member to ensure that it is documented in the Complaint Log. Once the apparent violation is documented, the ES Ssupervisory staff member will ensure the apparent violation is received by the local Complaint System Representative, who then:
attempts informal resolution following the same process used to resolve complaints for employers who have filed a job order with the Workforce Solutions Office during the previous 12 months; or
refers the apparent violation to the appropriate enforcement agency in writing for employers who have not filed a job order with the Workforce Solutions Office during the previous 12 months.
Additionally, apparent violations based on discrimination must be processed as complaints based on discrimination and be immediately referred by the local Complaint System Representative to the TWC EO Officer.



[bookmark: _Toc204091255]Appendices
[bookmark: _Toc204091256][bookmark: _Toc193350739]Appendix A: Complaints Procedures Not Included in This Guide
Complaint procedures related to Equal Opportunity (EO) and Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Discrimination protections and unemployment benefits decision appeals are not included in this guidance.
[bookmark: _Toc204091257]EO and WIOA Discrimination Complaints
EO and WIOA discrimination complaints include complaints alleging discrimination that is based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, or political affiliation or belief, or, for beneficiaries, applicants, and participants only, on the basis of citizenship status or participation in a Board or TWC program or activity.
Individuals alleging discrimination related to a Board or TWC program or activity can submit a written complaint of alleged discriminatory acts within 180 calendar days from the date of the alleged discriminatory act. 
Complainants may submit EO Discrimination complaints in writing to Board EO officers, to TWC Equal Opportunity Compliance Department (EOCD), or to the Department of Labor’s Civil Rights Center (CRC):
Texas Workforce Commission
Equal Opportunity Compliance Department
101 East 15th Street, Room 556
Austin, Texas 78778-0001
E-mail: EO.complaint@twc.texas.gov
Phone: 512-463-2400
Director, Civil Rights Center (CRC)
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Ave NW, Rm N-4123
Washington, DC 20210
Or electronically as directed on the U.S. DOL CRC website
Board EO Officers must ensure that Workforce Solutions Office staff advise individuals of their right to file a discrimination complaint and of the discrimination complaint procedure. Individuals who express an interest in filing a discrimination complaint should be referred to the Board’s EO Officer or TWC’s Equal Opportunity Compliance Department (EOCD).
Additional guidance for Boards is available in Workforce Development Letter 18-07, Change 2 (et seq.), issued January 30, 2019, and titled “Discrimination Complaint Procedures—Update.”
[bookmark: _Toc204091258]Unemployment Benefits Appeals
Individuals may learn more about appealing an unemployment benefit decision on the Appeals section of TWC’s Apply for Unemployment Benefits web page.
[bookmark: _Toc204091259]Appendix B: Definitions
The following are common terms used in this guide and relating to complaint procedures.
Adjudicator: An impartial individual designated by a Workforce Solutions Board (Board) to participate in a Board Informal Resolution Procedure and to review and issue Board decisions regarding program complaints. 
Aid, benefit, service, or training: Services—financial or other aid, training, or benefits—provided by a recipient including through a contract or other arrangements. These include (but are not limited to) the following:
Career services
Education or training
Health, welfare, housing, social service, rehabilitation, or other supportive services
Work opportunities
Cash, loans, or other financial assistance to individuals
Any aid, benefits, services, or training provided in or through a facility that has been constructed, expanded, altered, leased, rented, or otherwise obtained, in whole or in part, with federal financial assistance under Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) Title I
Apparent violation: A suspected violation of employment-related laws or Employment Service (ES) regulations by an employer, which Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members observe, have reason to believe occurred, or about which they receive information (other than a complaint)
Appeal: A written request for a review filed with a Board, TWC, or the appropriate agency by an individual in response to a determination or decision
Applicant: An individual who is interested in being considered for any aid, benefit, service, or training by a recipient, and who has submitted personal information to the recipient; this may include an individual who applies for employment with the recipient
Board Informal Resolution Procedure: An informal resolution procedure determined by written Board policy that is provided to a complainant for a workforce program or services complaint or appeal, covered by 40 TAC Chapter 823. Regulations at 40 TAC §823.12 provide examples of applicable actions that may be included in a Board Informal Resolution Procedure, including informal meetings with case managers or supervisors, meetings with affected parties, and written explanations of laws or regulations relating to the complaint
Civil Rights Center (CRC): A division of the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL), the mission of the CRC is to promote nondiscrimination and EO by enforcing various civil rights laws. These laws include (but are not limited to) the following:
· WIOA §188
· Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended
· Sections 504 and 508 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended
· Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended
· Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended
· Title II, Subpart A of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
EO Discrimination complainants may be submitted in writing to the address below or electronically as directed on the U.S. DOL CRC website:
Director, Civil Rights Center (CRC)
U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue Northwest, Room N-4123
Washington, DC 20210
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR): The codification of the general and permanent rules published by federal departments and agencies
Complainant: The individual, employer, organization, association, or entity (including the designated representative of any of these) filing a complaint or program determination appeal
Complaint: A representation made or referred to TWC or a Workforce Solutions Office of an alleged violation of ES regulations, WIOA nondiscrimination prohibitions, or other federal laws enforced by federal, state, or local agencies
Complaint System: The system established by the Wagner-Peyser Act (and further described in 20 CFR, Part 658) that processes complaints about employers and jobs to which the applicant is referred by Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members or through WorkInTexas.com and complaints involving the failure to comply with ES regulations and employment-related laws. All staff at Workforce Solutions Offices must be able to take complaints using Form ETA-8429, the Complaint/Apparent Violation Form. Assigned and trained Complaint System Representatives must be Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff members, and they are responsible for processing complaints.
Local Complaint System Representative: A trained ES Merit Workforce Solutions Office staff member who is responsible for processing complaints at their assigned Workforce Solutions Office
Complaint System Coordinator: A trained ES Merit TWC staff member who is responsible for processing complaints at the TWC level
Decision: A written finding issued by a Board adjudicator, or TWC hearing officer, following a hearing in response to a complaint or appeal
Determination: A written order issued to a Workforce Solutions Office customer by a Board, its designee, or the TWC relating to an adverse action or to a provider or contractor relating to denial or termination of eligibility under programs administered by TWC or a Board listed in 40 TAC §823.1(b)
[bookmark: _Hlk192509379]Discrimination: Unlawful activities identified under 29 CFR, Part 38. This includes any decisions about admittance or access to a program or services, treatment of a person regarding a program or services, denial of benefits, and denial of employment by a recipient based on any of the following:
· Race, color, or national origin, including limited English proficiency (42 USC §2000d et seq.) 
· Religion (42 USC §2000d et seq.) 
· Sex (except as otherwise permitted under 20 USC §1681 et seq.) 
· Age (42 USC §6101 et seq.)
· Disability (29 USC §794)
· Political affiliation or belief
Employment-Related Laws: Those laws that relate to the employment relationship, such as those enforced by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Wage and Hour Division (WHD), Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA), or other federal, state, or local agencies
Employment Service (ES) Merit Staff: Staff Workforce service provider and state merit staff members responsible for providing ES services required under the Wagner-Peyser Act to anyone that comes intojob seekers and employers in a Workforce Solutions Office. ES Merit staff members are TWC employees
Employment Service (ES) Supervisory Staff: The ES Merit staff member in charge of ES services provided in a Workforce Solutions Office 
EO Compliance Department (EOCD): Unit within TWC’s Fraud Deterrence and Compliance Monitoring (FDCM) Division led by the state-level EO Officer, and with responsibility to implement the provisions of WIOA §188 and 29 CFR, Part 38, to:
provide technical assistance and training to all parties about those requirements;
monitor compliance by TWC, Boards, and other recipients; 
receive and process complaints; and 
take other necessary steps to accomplish those requirements
Equal Opportunity (EO) Officer: Individual responsible for coordinating the recipients’ responsibilities under the nondiscrimination and equal opportunity provisions of WIOA §188 and 29 CFR, Part 38. EO Officer responsibilities include (but are not limited to): 
· serving as the liaison with TWC or the DOL and Civil Rights Center (CRC);
· monitoring recipients’ activities and the activities of the entities that receive WIOA funds from the recipient to ensure these entities are not violating nondiscrimination and EO provisions of WIOA §188;
· reviewing recipients’ written policies to ensure the policies are not discriminatory;
· developing and publishing procedures for processing discrimination complaints and ensuring those procedures are followed;
· reporting directly to the appropriate official (TWC, the governor, or other appropriate authority) about EO matters; and
· undergoing training to maintain competency
Filing Date: The filing date for a complaint or an appeal. In accordance with 40 TAC §823.3, the filing date is:
· the postmark date or the postal meter date, if there is only one;
· the postmark date if there is both a postmark date and a postal meter date;
· the date the document was delivered to a common carrier, which is equivalent to the postmark date;
· three business days before receipt by the Board or TWC, if the document was received in an envelope bearing no legible postmark, postal meter date, or date of delivery by a common carrier;
· the date of the document itself, if the document date is fewer than three days earlier than the date of receipt and if the document was received in an envelope bearing no legible postmark, postal meter date, or date of delivery by a common carrier;
· the date of the document itself, if the mailing envelope containing the complaint or appeal is lost after delivery to the Board or TWC; or
· the date of receipt by the Board or TWC if the document was filed by fax.
For ES and employment-related law complaints, the filing date may be the date received documented on Form ETA-8429, if later than the above. 
One-Stop Partner: An entity that carries out a program or activities in a Board area that is included in WIOA §121(b) or identified in Title 40, Texas Administrative Code, Chapter 801.
Regional Office Administrator: The U.S. Department of Labor Employment and Training Administration (DOLETA) maintains six regional offices whose staff members monitor programs, services and benefits provided under WIOA, Unemployment Insurance, Trade Adjustment Assistance, and targeted grants. Complainants who submit a program-related appeal to the Secretary of the Department of Labor must also provide the DOLETA Regional Office Administrator a written copy of the appeal.

DOLETA Regional Administrator contact information:

525 S Griffin St
Room 317
Dallas, TX 75202-5002
Phone: 972-850-4600
Fax: 972-850-460
Email:  RO4-RA-DAL@dol.gov
Respondent: The individual, company, agency, or entity against whom a complaint is filed
Secretary: Secretary of the DOL
Complainants may mail program appeals to:
Secretary, U.S. Department of Labor
200 Constitution Avenue Northwest
Washington, DC 20210 
Attention: ASET
Service Provider: Defined in 29 CFR, Part 38.4. Any operator or provider of WIOA Title I–financially assisted aid, benefits, services, or training. Does not include TWC, Boards, or one-stop operators. State and Board EO Officers are responsible for ensuring service provider nondiscrimination compliance, as appropriate.
State Monitor Advocate: Senior-level ES MeritTWC staff member responsible for monitoring TWC and Board-area employment service delivery and protections for MSFWs and appropriateness of informal resolution of complaints and apparent violations under ES and employment-related law complaint system. The State Monitor Advocate serves as a liaison to the TWC EO Officer
TWC Special Program Appeals: TWC department responsible for conducting agency-level hearings relating to ES, child care, and other program appeals not relating to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination protections. More information about these appeals is available on TWC’s Appeals Program webpage.
Mail 
TWC Special Program Appeals
101 East 15th Street, Room 414
Austin, TX 78778-0001 
Email, specialprogram.appeals@twc.texas.gov
Fax, 512-463-9318
United States Code (USC): The codification of the general and permanent laws of the United States. The USC does not include federal court decisions, treaties, laws enacted by state or local governments, or regulations issued by executive branch agencies (which may be found in CFR).
Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) Liaison: Individual designated at each local VR office to record complaints in writing and assist complainants with filling out forms. Each facility where a VR program operates (whether stand-alone or integrated into a Workforce Solutions Office) must have a designated VR Liaison.
Wagner-Peyser Act: The Wagner-Peyser Act of 1933, as amended by WIOA, is the federal law that established a nationwide system of public employment offices to provide labor exchange services. Provided primarily through WorkInTexas.com, these services are designed to increase employment opportunities for all workers through the provision of basic career services and to meet the needs of employers through recruitment assistance and referral of well-qualified candidates. On November 24, 2023, DOLETA published the Wagner-Peyser Act Final Rule, which became effective January 21, 2024, requiring all ES services to be provided by ES Merit staff members and enhancing MSFW protections. Federal regulations governing ES functions include 20 CFR, Parts 651–654, 20 CFR, Part 658, and 29 CFR, Part 75.
Wagner-Peyser Employment Service (ES): The national system of public ES offices described under the Wagner-Peyser Act. In Texas, ES services are delivered through the Texas Workforce Solutions network by ES Merit staff members who work primarily at Workforce Solutions Offices.
Workforce Solutions Office Staff: Staff members providing services (including ES services) at a Workforce Solutions Office, including Board contract workforce service providers,  and state meritES Merit staff members providing ES services under the Wagner-Peyser Act, or staff members of other partner programs co-located within a Workforce Solutions Office. 
Workforce Solutions Office Supervisory Staff: Workforce Solutions Office staff who direct other Workforce Solutions Office staff, including workforce service provider staff and state merit staff providing ES under the Wagner-Peyser Act. Workforce Solutions Office Supervisory staff may coordinate staffing, workflow, and customer service activities across all programs and partners collocated within the Workforce Solutions Office to support an integrated, seamless service delivery environment.

[bookmark: _Appendix_C:_Required][bookmark: _Toc204091260]Appendix C: Required Posters
TWC’s Business Operations Division maintains a Required Notices SharePoint folder (which is not available to the general public) with printable versions of all required posters specific to the agency. Boards must follow instructions from the Business Operations Risk and Security Management department regarding the annual compliance review.
[bookmark: _Toc204091261]Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaint System Poster
Training and Employment Notice 08-23, issued October 10, 2023, titled “Required Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaint System Posters,” includes approved posters for the ES and Employment-Related Law Complaint System in English and Spanish. Additionally, the posters with Texas’ State Monitor Advocate information included are published on TWC’s Employment Service Program web page. 

Required Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaint System Poster 
(English and Spanish)
[image: Sample Poster: ES Complaint Poster (English)][image: Sample Poster: ES Complaint Poster (Spanish)]
[bookmark: _Toc204091262]
U.S. Department of Agriculture Notice: And Justice for All
The U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) And Justice for All poster will be the primary method used to inform customers of their EO rights except when appropriate substitutes for outdoor areas are necessary. Boards that need additional posters or posters in additional languages may contact wfpolicy.clarifications@twc.texas.gov.
And Justice for All Poster (English and Spanish)[image: Sample Notice: USDA Notice - And Justice for All ]

[bookmark: _Toc204091263]Appendix D: Complaint Forms
[bookmark: _ETA-8429:_Complaint/Apparent_Violat][bookmark: _Toc204091264]Form ETA-8429, Complaint/Apparent Violation Form
Individuals (farmworkers and non–farmworkers), employers, organizations, associations, or their designated representatives can file ES and employment-related law complaints using Form ETA-8429, Complaint/Apparent Violation Form. DOL’s Monitor Advocate System Resources web page includes this form (in PDF and Word formats) and TWC’s Migrant & Seasonal Farmworker Resources web page also includes a link to this form. Additionally, complainants and Workforce Solutions Office staff may complete the form in WorkInTexas.com.
Form ETA-8429, Complaint/Apparent Violation Form
[image: Sample Poster: ETA 8429 - Complaint/Apparent Violation Form]




[bookmark: _Toc204091265]Employment Service Complaint System Log
The Complaint System Log is used by Workforce Solutions OfficeES Merit staff, VR Liaisons, and Complaint System Representatives to track the status of ES and employment-related law complaints and apparent violations. Local Complaint System Representatives are responsible for maintenance of the ES Complaint System Log.
[bookmark: _Toc204091266]ES Complaint System Log
[bookmark: _Toc193350775][image: Sample Image: ES Complaint Log]
Appendix E: Complaint Workflows
[bookmark: _Toc204091267]Wagner-Peyser: Employment Service (ES) Complaint Process Map
[bookmark: _Toc193350777][bookmark: _Toc193350779][image: Wagner-Peyser: Employment Service (ES) Complaint Process Map Flowchart]
Wagner-Peyser: Employment-Related Law Complaint Process Map[image: Wagner-Peyser Employment-Related Law Complaint Process Map Flowchart]

[bookmark: _Toc204091268][image: Non ES program complaints and Board determination appeals flowchart]Program Complaint and Determination Appeal Process Map
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W Lasleyes federales prohiben los empleadores tomar represalias tomar medidas negativas) contra los.
‘empleados que informan Quejas relacionadas con el empleo. 5 experimenta represalias de un empleador,
notifique la quefa representante.

Sltienealguna duda sobre este proceso de quefa, comuniquese con su Defensor del Monitor Estatal:

Nombre de Defensor del Pueblo:
Correo electronico: "Numero de teléfono:

“Laasistencla linguistica esta disponible de forma gratulta.
Para obtener informacion sobre servicios de nterpretacion y traduccion, pongase en contacto con:

Nombre: Teléfono:

EMPLOYMENT AND TRAINING ADMINISTRATION

¥ ) /
AmericanJobCenter ONITED STATES DEPARTIENT OF LABOR
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discrimination in al s programs and activties on the basis
of race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity
(including gender expression), sexual orientation, disabilty, age,
marital status, familill parental status, income derived from a public
assistance program, politcal beliefs, reprisal or retaliation for prior
civlights activity. (Not all prohibited bases apply o al programs )

Program information may be made available in languages other
than English. Persons with disabilfies who require altemative:
means of communication for program information (e.g., Braile, large.
print, audiotape, and American Sign Language) should contact the
responsible Mission Area, agency, staffoffice, or USDA's TARGET
Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or contact USDA through
the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339.

o fle a program discrimination complaint, a complainant should
complete a Form AD-3027, USDA Program Discrimination Complaint
Form, which can be obtained oniine, at

‘wunw usda qovisites/defaultfles/documents/usda-proaram-
discrimination-complaint-form pdf. from any USDA office, by caling
(866) 632-9992, or by writng a lefte addressed to USDA. The letter
must contain the compiainant's name, adress, telephone number
and a written descripton of the alleged discriminatory acton in
suficient detail o inform the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
(ASCR)

about the nature and date of an alleged civi ights violation. The
completed AD-3027 form or letter must be submitted to

USDA by:

mail:

USS. Department of Agricuture:

Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights

1400 Independence Avenue, SW

Washington, D.C. 20250-9410; or

fax:

(833) 256-1665 or (202) 690-7442;

‘email
program intake@usda gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Tne U_S. Depariment of Agricuture (USDA) prohibits

[P —

| Departamento de Agricultura d los Estados Unidos
(USDA) prohibe la discriminacion en todos sus programas
actividades por moivos de raza, color, origen nacional,
religion, sexo, identidad de género (incluyendo Ia expresion de
género), orientacion sexual, discapacidad, edad, estado civi, estado
famillariparental, ingresos derivados de un programa de asistencia
piblica, creencias politicas, represalias o venganza por actividades
realizadas en el pasado relacionadas con los derechos civiles (no
todos los principios de prohibicion apiican a todos los programas).

La informacion el programa puede estar disponible en olros
idiomas ademas del inglés. Las personas con discapacidades

Que requieran medios de comunicacion altemativos para obtener
informacion sobre el programa (por ejemplo, Braile, letra agrandada,
grabacion de audio y lenguaje de sefias americano) deben
comunicarse con el Area de la mision, agencia u oficina del personal
responsable, o con el TARGET Center del USDA al (202) 720-2600
(voz y TTY) 0 comunicarse con el USDA a traves del Servicio Federal
de Transmision de la Informacion al (800) 877-8339.

Para presentar una queia por discriminacion en el programa, el
reclamante debe completar un formulario AD-3027, Formulario de
queja por discriminacion del programa del USDA, que se puede
obtener en linea, en

Wwwusda, qovisites/defaulfies/documents/usda-proaram-
discrimination-complaint-form.pdf, en cualquier oficina del USDA,
lamando al (856) 632-9992, 0 escribiendo una carta dirigida al
USDA. La carta debe contener el nombre, [a direccion el

niimero de teléfono del reclamante, y una descripcion escrita de.

Ia supuesta accion

discriminatoria con sufciente detalle para informar al Subsecretario
de Derechos Civiles (ASCR, por sus siglas en inglés) sobre la
naturaleza y 1a fecha de la presunta violacin de los derechos
civiles. La carta o el formulario AD-3027 completado debe enviarse
al USDA por medio de:

correo postal

USS. Depariment of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civi Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW.

Washington, D.C. 20250-8410; 0*

fax:

(833) 256-1665 0" (202) 690-7442;

correo electronico:

program intake@usda.gov.

E1 USDA es un proveedor, empleador y prestamista de igualdad de
dades.
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For Official Use Only Complaint/Apparent Violation Form."
[FomplamApparert Viaaion No ate Recaned
Partl. Contact Information. 'Respondent’s Information®
7 Name of Person, Company, or Agency the Complaint s Made
Against

5_Name of Employer ( diferent from Part 1 #4 above) IOne-Sop
Office.

. Address of Employer/One-Stop Offce

T Name of Complainant{Last, First Middle Infial)®

7a_ Permanent Address (No., St, Cty, State, ZIP Code)

. Temporary Address (¥ Appropriate)

3a. Pemanent Telephone b Temporary Telephone 7. Telephone Number of EmployeriOne-Stop Office
[ — () - ) -

Part Il._For Official Use Only

T Migrant or Seasonal Farmworker?
Ove  Line

4. Issuels) involved in Complaint or Apparent
Violation ('X" Approprate Box(es)):

Employer, is the complainant

T Compiamt 7 RpparenEVion (o Appoprite o)
Enproyman: Serves Rasted X" Wege Relted Hovsing
Apoprate Boxien) o o [ us worker
ot e o o O etaner Oresees | 0 maavner
] soparntvetason g e O reamsaey D owernrete
[
(] Compiaint against the Local [ Trensportaton [ Traffeking

‘Employment Service Office:

[] Apparentvoiston nvaving the

Senul harsssmentosrcnissaut
s Saics O ]

22. Job Order No,if available: [ Oter(speciy

3. Complaint or Apparent Violation Employment-

8a. Descripton of Complaint or Apparent Violation (7 addional space s nesded, use separate shest() of paper and afach (o s form)

8b. [ 1 hereby give authorization to:
Phone # Address

to act on my behalf regarding this complaint.

TCERTIFY that the information furished s tue and accuralely stated (o e best of my knowledge. | AUTHORIZE e disciosure of

Certification tis information to other enforcement agencies for the proper investigation of my complaint. | UNDERSTAND that my identity will be kept
confidential o the maximum extent possible, consistent with applicable law and a airdefermination of my complaint.

elated Law:
[Ives [no
6 Referrals To Other Agendies (x Approprate Box(es)) | 7. Address of Referral Agency (No, SL, City, Sae, ZIP Code and
OJ wHp.us poL. [J OSHAUS.D.OL. Telephone No.)
[] EEOC [ Other
5. Next Follow-up Date  complainant s an MISFW
I B
8. Actions Taken on Complaint/Apparent Violation (I addiional space s needed for mulile actions taken, Use a separate paper).
‘Action Taken By. on:
TFrstand Last Name) )
Acton Taken

9. Complaint resolved at the local level [Oves  [No I *No.” explain®

10. Apparent violations resolved at the local level [] Yes [] No, If"No. explain’,
11. Provided other American Job Center Senvices [] Yes [ Nolf "No."explain’.
“If additional space is needed for explanations, use a separate paper.

[2a Name and Tile of Person Receiving Compiaint 2. Office Address (No., St iy, State, ZIP Code)

3. Signature of Complanant® 0. Date Signed
] ]
[T2e Phone Number T2 Sgnatwe % Date
! For information regarding complaints that are covered through the Employment Service and Employment-Related Law Complaint System see () ! !

20 CFR 658 Subpart E.
2 f the Complaint/Apparent Violation Form is used to submit an Violation, the name of the Complainant is not necessary and may
remain anonymous. Parts 2a and 2b also do not need to be filled out i the form is used for an Apparent Violation.

* For definition of “Respondent” see 20 CFR 651.10.
*Pursuant to 658.400(d), “A complainant may designate an individual to act as his/her representative.” If the complainant has a designated
representative, the name and contact information of the designated representative must be provided in 8b.

# No signature is required at Part 9 i this form is submitted as an Apparent Violation. f e form is submitted as a complaint and a designated
representative is acting on behalf of the complainant, the designated representative must sign here.

Public Burden Statement
Persons are not required to respond to this collection of information unless it isplays a currently valid OMB Control Number. Obligation to reply is
required to_obtain or retain benefis (44 USC 5301). Public reporting burden for this collecton is estimated to average 2 hours and 30 minuies per
response, including the time {0 review _nsiructions, search existing data sources, gather and maintain the data needed, and complete and review
the collecton of information. Send comments._regarding this burden estimate or any other aspect of this collecion, including suggestions. for
reducing this burden, to the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Office of Worklorce Investment, Room C4510, 200
Consituion Avenue, NV, Washington, DC 20210.
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‘Wagner-Peyser: Employment Service (ES) Regulations Complaint Process Map

ES Customer Complaints
Individual indicates interest in filing

‘Apparent Violations
( Wagner-Peyser (WP) Employment Service | PP
(€5) complaint /Tocal staff believe or receive information\
e — [ regarding suspected violation of ES

Local staff offer to: \ regulation by employer
o Explain WP Complaints System
o Assist complainart with Form ETA-8429 Local staff document as Apparent Violation

Local staff accept ETA-8420 signed by using ETA-8429 and refer to ES Supervisory
complainant. Staff complete Part Il of form staff

T

Local staff send ETA-8429 (and any related Local staff document in Complaint System
documentation) to Complaint System

Log and refer to Complaint System
Representative Representative

Does complaint allege’
violation of
ondiscrimination laws2

—No-

Yes:

Complaint System Representative
logs complaint in ES Complaint Log,
investigates complaint, and
attempts to resolve informally

Complaint System Representative
logs the complaint in ES Complaint
Log, then immediately refers
Discrimination Complaint to TWC
£O Officer. Notifies parties of
referral*

Was informal
resolution achieved
within 15 working days?
5 days if involving
an MSFW?

Complaint System Representative notifies all
parties in writing of informal resolution to which
those parties have arrived

Yes——

No

Complaint System Representative
refers complaint to TWC Complaint
System Coordinator. Notifies
parties of referral*

TWC Complaint System Coordinator inves(igz(es\
complaintimmediately and provides TWC Determination)

Notice to all parties within 30 working days )
\ (20 if complaint involves an MSFW) /

TWC Determination Notice will include information on
* If complainant is MSFW, Complaint Appeal process
System Representative will follow-up If d P B I 3 TWE will initi
monthly with status of complaint. letermination is against employer, will initiate

discontinuation of ES services for employer.
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‘Wagner-Peyser: Employment-Related Law Complaints Process Map

Customer Complaints

‘/Individuzl indicates interest in ﬁling\‘

\_ employment related law complaint )
L

Local staff offer to:
«  Explain WP Complaints System

o Assist complainant with Form ETA-8429
T

Local staff accept ETA-8429 signed by
complainant. Staff complete Part Il of form

T
Local staff send ETA-8429 (and any related

documentation) to Complaint System
Representative

Apparent Violations

/L/ocal staff believe or receive informalioN

regarding suspected violation of
\_employment-related law by employer /

Local staff document as Apparent Violation
using ETA-8429 and refer to ES Supervisory
staff

Local staff document in Complaint System
Log and refer to Complaint System
Representative

Complaint System Representative logs
complaint in ES Complaint Log

Complaint System Representative
refers complaint to appropriate
enforcement agency, public agency,
legal aid, or consumer advocacy
group. Notifies parties of referral*

* If complainant is MSFW, Complaint System
Representative will follow-up monthly with
status of complaint.

Complaint allege violation
of nondiscrimination

_— . . Representative attempts to
—No——= ? =
No s complainant an MSFW?_>—Yes

—

Complaint System
—
resolve informally unless
T . .
action would be detrimental

No

Complaint System
Representative refers
Yes— Discrimination Complaint to

TWC EO Officer. Notifies
parties of referral*

Was informal
resolution achieved
Within 5 days?

B [Yes

‘Complaint System Representative notifies’
[ all parties in writing of informal resolution |
to which those parties have arrived
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{Program Complaint and Determination Appeal Process Map
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